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Chair Lee: Called for the clerk to read the bill. 
 
Senator Kathy Hogan: Attached testimony #1. 
 
Pamela Sagness, Director of the Behavioral Health Division, Department of Human 
Services: Testified in support of SB 2032. Testimony Attachment # 2.  
 
Chair Lee: Do you want to give us an overview of this handout? 
 
Pamela Sagness: This handout is used to educate people to what peer support is and what 
it looks like in behavior health. Mainly focusing on the effectiveness of Peer Support. It’s 
important to educate people that Peer Support is a necessary component of what we would 
consider to be a collaborative team approach. Much of this work is developing this 
comprehensive team approach. Everyone has different needs and paths to recovery.  
 
Chair Lee: If you haven’t ever gone on the website for Pam’s division, there is an enormous 
amount of really good stuff there. The resources available for peoples’ personal use and that 
to post in public places.  
 
Pamela Sagness: Absolutely, the website is on the bottom of the handout. We also have 
parentsleague.org, where we provide info that is available for individuals who may be seeking 
services themselves. We have a service locator on the website, that can identify for example 
the opioid treatment programs, substance abuse programs throughout the state. We are also 
connected with a national locator. We have a free prevention and resource media center, 
where all of our resources can be directly mailed to individuals who live in the state at no 
cost.  
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Senator Anderson: We developed some criteria with the department of corrections. I 
wonder why now are we just developing what they have to do, when what you have here 
says we already have them working. Can you explain whether we are just training now people 
we have working or how does that work? 
 
Pamela Sagness: What we’re looking at with certification is a broad baseline. We need to 
ensure basic standards with things like ethics, continued education, super vision, the things 
that would be those national standards. In order to ensure that Peer Support services in this 
state are quality services and that there is support available. There was a question yesterday 
regarding, “how do we ensure that we have Peers who are providing effective services?”, a 
large component of that is having coordinated supervision and support. It’s important to look 
at this similarly as you would with addiction counselors. Addiction Counselors for example 
have a minimum requirement for education, training, testing, etc. Once they are licensed, the 
model they use is dependent on who they are, what their training was, and who they serve. 
That’s much similar to Peer support. We are not asking to choose one model, we’re saying 
there are minimum standards and then the model used will depend on the different agencies. 
There are many different programs with different standards. The majority of Peers we have 
trained right now, don’t have work. We have to have reimbursement. If we don’t have that, 
they will need to have the certification in order to be reimbursed through that program. All of 
these things are tied together. Our request is simply to get the authority; the rewriting process 
would follow this session and will be a very public process. Our intent is not to require 
certification.  
 
(13:11) Senator Larsen: Is this training online or would I need to travel? Will it be a smooth 
transition? 
 
Pamela Sagness: We are not prescribing one certain way of training. There is a 40-hour 
online training through the ATTC, which is federally funded. We have been doing in-person 
training. There are many options. Working with UND to draft some standards.  
 
Carlotta McCleary, Executive Director for Mental Health America of ND, and North 
Dakota Federation of Families for Children’s Mental Health: Testified in support of SB 
2032 on behalf of Mental Health Advocacy Network (MHAN). 
Provided Attachment #3. 
 
(18:36) Trina Gress, Vice President of Community Options: Testified in favor of SB 2032.  
Provided Attachment # 4. 
 
(21:46) Jessica Thomasson, CEO Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota: Testified 
in support of 2032. Provided written testimony Attachment #5. 
 
Senator Clemens: What is a fair number of clients a Peer Support Specialist could handle? 
 
Jessica Thomasson: That is a good question. It depends on the amount of time they can 
dedicate to their work. The standard we have used to contract with, we say about 4 to 5 
people. That is not full time, more of on the side. How it would look if we were able to 
professionalize it, would be different.  
Adam Martin, Executive Director of F5 Project: Testified in support of SB 2032.  
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We would rather do Peer Support then care coordination. We don’t want to just check a box, 
but share our experience. We need this to be professionalized. We believe in all roads to 
recovery. There isn’t a magic bullet to recovery, but this could be one of the keys to helping 
our communities.  
 
(27:18) Senator Roers: Answer the same question Senator Clemens just asked. What does 
the case load look like for your organization? 
 
Adam Martin: This is so new; it is difficult to answer. For our organization it is more than 5. 
It is a language of the heart, it’s a different conversation. We aren’t telling people what to do, 
it’s easier for us to just walk that path with them. I personally sponsor 10 guys in Alcohols 
Anonymous, and I have a case load of 5. If I did this full time, I think I could personally do 
Peer Support for 20 people. 
 
Senator Larsen: What does continuing education credit cost? Is there an easy path to go 
from Peer Support to addiction counselor, are those continuing education credits transferable 
to a college degree or is it just a certificate? 
 
Adam Martin: May have to ask Pam on that. Being a Peer Support specialist is the gateway 
to a new career. This is providing a more professional way to go down that path. About the 
transferring of credits, I’m not sure.  
 
Senator Clemens: What is a typical day with clients? Sometimes your one on one or is it a 
group activity? 
 
Adam Martin: From our perspective on Peer Support, we meet frequently with our peers. 
Phone calls, office visits, emails, texts, community gatherings. It’s like a mentorship. It’s lived 
experience and walking side by side with them. I thought at first money would effect that 
language of the heart. It doesn’t it helps people specialize and be there more often. I went to 
AA for 15 years, only 5 years ago I sobered up. I felt outcast. From a Peer support view, it’s 
important we don’t outcast, but create options. We have had many different types of people 
in our offices, it takes many people and a lot of training. Answering the phone at 2 AM isn’t a 
counselor issue, it’s a Peer Support issue.  
 
Chair Lee: The Peer Support training is not a semester long, intensive education. It’s a short 
course. So it is unlikely those hours would ever apply towards a degree. It won’t be a big step 
up on the ladder, maybe spur someone on in a new direction, but not a degree in itself.  
 
(35:02) Pam Sagness: Just to clarify. When we look at continuing Ed, we would provide that 
through different formats. With this bill and making Peer Support a certified practice, we 
would provide yearly and necessary training. They would receive that at no or low cost. We 
have Federal funding specifically for these services.  
 
Chair Lee: Explained how Legislative mannerisms and communication through chair works.  
 
Senator Anderson: Protocol is more to keep ourselves in line then you. It depersonalizes 
any conflict in the actual committee.  
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(38:40) Kurt Snyder, Chair of ND Behavioral Health Planning Council, and ND Board of 
Addiction Councilor Examiners, Executive Director of the Heart View Foundation: 
Testified in support of SB 2032. We believe that certification in very important. Learned 
experience versus lived experience, they are both extremely important. Certification would 
help these people be more equipped. One of the biggest things we’ve dealt with is 
professionalism, ethics and boundaries in that role to be successful.  
 
(42:40) Chair Lee: Recommended Mr. Snyder get a lobbyist pin. Asked for further testimony. 
 
(43:02) Emma Quinn, Representing herself and all mentally ill people. Testified in 
support of SB 2032. Please see Attachment #6 for testimony. 
 
(48:37) Ryan Hensley, Care Coordinator and Peer Support Specialist at ND Adult and 
Teen Challenge: Testified in support of SB 2032. Please see Attachment #7 for testimony.   
 
(50:47) Hannah Vansteenvourt, On behalf of North Dakota Adult and Teen Challenge 
(NDATC). Testifying in support of SB 2032. Testimony is as follows: Went through teen 
challenge, and recently went through the Peer Support program. I was looking for a purpose 
in myself and drugs, until I came to the end of myself and realized there was no purpose. I 
found teen challenge while in jail, and it changed my life. Graduated out of the program in 
July. The most important aspect is community. It is easier to relate to someone who has 
walked down the same path as me. We stoop down to their level and pick them up where 
they’re at. We show them hope, because we are living it. Now I am the one getting to help 
people up. For me Peer Support also helps me to live that life. I have a vision and purpose 
to my life and am able to show others that.  
 
Chair Lee: Thank you and congratulations on your recovery.  
 
(56:45) Sydney Mcorvy, Bismarck: Testified in support of SB 2032. Struggled with 
substance abuse. Very passionate about this program and helping others stay away from the 
things I’ve had to go through. I have over 3 years of sobriety, and am now a Peer Support 
Specialist. I am very proud to be a part of this after hearing the testimonies today. 
 
(1:00:23) Lorraine Davis, Native American Development Center : Just wanted to state 
agreement for everything that was said. Testified in support of SB 2032.  
 
Chair Lee: Called for opposition testimony on SB 2032. Being none, closed the hearing.  
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Madam Chair Lee: Okay SB 2032 this was the peers support specialist’s certification. 
 
Senator Hogan: The fiscal note that came from the way we did peer support certification 
which is through Free Through Recovery of all the stories we heard was through a federal 
grant and the collections side and that’s where this 275,000-dollar number came from and 
that is included in the FTE. They did that by a contract and so that’s where the number came 
from.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Just to make sure, you said this 275,000 is inclusive of the FTE? 
 
Senator Hogan: Yes.  
 
Senator Hogan: That’s the basis on where did this fiscal note come from is that we used the 
same model but are expanding it to other groups but in the original plan the specific duties 
weren’t defined, so we are being much more prescriptive of the expectations what the 
outcomes are. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Peer support specialist certification, 275,000 dollars in general funds and 
the same from federal funds. I think we heard a lot about book yesterday and today and the 
educational programs have been very involved in one of them but the certification for training 
that is pretty much set up so it is just a matter of more and more people who get engaged in 
the good web.  
 
Senator Hogan: I think this certification that we currently have is primarily targeted at 
substance use disorder so we have to do both mental health and children’s mental health so 
it will end up being 3 or 4 like she said a whole set of patterns and we will probably end up 
with 4 or 5 packages of peer certification. They are all different but the standards would be 
the same. It’s the way of really engaging which church groups and what local communities 
and all the local initiatives. I love what the jail Chaplin has done in Fargo.  
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Senator O. Larsen: It’s not something that I want to inject now but in the future I hope we 
can support that it really bothers me on the continuing education certification that when these 
folks try to transition to another higher form of education it’s that road block that we all hear 
about is that no those don’t qualify for college credits and am hoping that after this goes 
forward and we continue with the continuing education that somebody will come forward and 
work with the colleges and have that because we have seen it with the marriage and family 
counselors and everybody else that they are out there and they are working in the trenches 
and then all of a sudden they want to be a director or want to move on and they hit that brick 
wall than it doesn’t count. If we could be proactive and make sure that this starts moving into 
the direction of where they can get paid for their education but just so we don’t get stuck in 
that rut.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The thing is, is it is a one-week program. I don’t believe that my bio-
chemistry class that I spent 30 hours of lab a week in for a semester plus 5 hours of lecture 
a week could possibly be equivalent to a 5 day all day class.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I agree with that, with the certain parts of the curriculum and as you look 
at your whole degree, when I was doing my education degree I think it was 36 elective credits, 
but what she just did with her continuing education would not count for that 36 elective credit.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: That was a short course.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: In teaching to lane change and make more money you have to go and 
get continuing education because that conveniently align with the university systems. So you 
pay 50 dollars and you go to the weekend in Fargo and maybe attend one deal and put your 
name on the sheet and you’ve got you college credit that went towards my master’s degree.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I don’t disagree with the whole latter concept of that at all. 
 
Senator Hogan: I thought it was interesting what Kurt Snyder said, the addiction licensing 
board had talked about making peer support people under their licensing. It’s a little 
dangerous step because they micro manage everything. They are talking about it from a 
different point of view and that was fascinating to me.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: It’s not just in my issue when I was a technician in the 70’s I never knew 
I was going to be a teacher, but that transition was very fluid as compared to an English 
teacher to do the same thing and I don’t understand why it’s not. I taught in the school when 
I was doing it, so I would like to see the same thing my wife talks about the LICSW’s and all 
of that and where that deal is and I understand that. 
 
Senator Clemens: What people are going to now is real life experience stuff. I can see if 
they go into maybe some selective curriculum like counseling. What they are doing now could 
be accredited towards their internship, so maybe that can be implemented at some point.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I do a lot of continuing education because I have to have multiple licenses 
for my job so I have to be licensed in both Minnesota and North Dakota, but the requirements 
for continuing education are different in Minnesota than they are in North Dakota. How I 
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actually envisioning it is because, often the classes that I take for continuing education don’t 
quite have the meat that a college course has, I wonder if there wasn’t a way to actually 
reverse that path. So if I do decide to go on for that degree the class that I am taking can 
count towards my continuing education for the job that I am currently holding. That might just 
be a smoother transition so that I’m not having to do continuing education and pursuing my 
degree I think that may be a little bit easier for people that they will accept accredited 
universities course work as continuing education, rather than the opposite way around 
because I think you just don’t get quite the same depth that you would in a full semester 
course.  
 
Senator Anderson: The board of pharmacy and medicine do accredit college courses for 
continuing education so I don’t know about the board of nursing. We do allow continuing 
education for those things.  
 
Senator K. Roers: For my professional certification I can claim some college course like if 
I’m teaching a course or doing a conference speaking I can utilize that as ours for my 
professional certification but I don’t know if I can use it as directly for my license.  
 
 Senator Anderson: One of the difficulties with Senator O. Larsen’s idea is, higher education 
is very against giving you college credit on something that they haven’t done themselves. 
For example, we have a technician training program and if (inaudible) runs the program, it’s 
like a correspondents course but they won’t give college credit for that because they didn’t 
come on campus and take the course. Plus, you have to be a college student to receive 
credit which means having to pay tuition if you’re going to get any credit for any of those 
courses.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m not going to do a lot of work on that until we see how the election 
goes for that three board model because I’m not betting the farm on that one going through 
with the voters. I just can’t see the voters going for that. I hope I’m wrong and that they figure 
out a way to do it.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I motion a DO PASS AND REREFER TO APPROPRIATIONS of SB 
2032.  
Seconded by Senator K. Roers 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN: 
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT  
SENATOR O. LARSEN WILL CARRY SB 2032 TO THE FLOOR.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to peer support specialist certification; and to provide an 
appropriation.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Testimony of Senator Kathy Hogan  
2. Testimony of Pam Sagness, Peer Support 

Services 
3. Testimony of Matthew McCleary 
4. Testimony of Sidney McCorvey  
5. Testimony of Richard Pallay,III  

 
Chairman Holmberg:  Called the Committee back to order on SB 2032 at 11:00 am in the 
Harvest Room.  All committee members were present.  Brady Larson, Legislative Council,  
and Becky J. Keller, OMB were also present.  
 
Senator Kathy Hogan, District 21, Fargo testified in favor of SB 2032 and submitted 
Attachment # 1` which states this bill is designed to establish an evidence-based process for 
training peer supports that could be used across the entire behavioral health continuum.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek:  Became the chair of this hearing as Senator Holmberg had to leave.    
 
Senator Mathern: One of the things that I’ve experienced since we’ve established peer 
support is a reluctance on the part of psychiatrists and people of that level to integrate the 
use of these people and care and it makes me wonder if they need training. I am just a little 
worried we will train all these peer support people but the system won’t really use them. So I 
wondering if your committee considered adding that here or what do you think in that regard?   
 
Senator Hogan: That’s why I said this is only one piece.  I think the training and integration 
of peers into comprehensive treatment plans and care coordination plans has to happen. But 
this is a new enough model and I think one of the things with professionals is they want to 
make sure that is you’re a peer support are you trained, do you have some credibility. That 
is why we thought this would be a beginning first step is assuring that at least there is some 
basic training and the models of practice are now evidence based for that training and then 
the next step might be to train other professionals to recognize the value of peer supports. 
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This is a major model change. I think most of us have recognized AA as being very effective 
and for many individuals it really works. But it’s one model and you need numerous models. 
 
 Senator Grabinger:  The Free through Recovery program used peer support specialists 
already, what level of training have they gotten and is there a difference between what you’re 
proposing here and the training they’ve received, if they received any?  
 
Senator Hogan: They all were trained. But there are other peer support groups that have 
developed around other programs and we want to start integrating the training component 
across all of those systems. So there are lots of informal peer support networks and we want 
to make sure that we have some minimum standards broadening what we did with Free 
through Recovery. 
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Is a peer specialist someone who has experienced the same 
experience? Does a trained peer have to be somebody that’s in helping somebody has to 
have the same similar experiences?  

 
Senator Hogan: That is a very wise question actually because generally that’s when you say 
peers, if you have a serious mental illness you want someone who is experienced serious 
mental illness, but if you have a family you might want a family support specialist. So there 
are subtle variances in this. Sometimes somebody has a substance use disorder and a 
mental illness, so then can you have someone with just the mental illness be your peer? It’s 
not as simple as it sounds. 
  
V. Chairman Wanzek: Can a peer be somebody who maybe personally didn’t have mental 
health illness but had a brother or family member?    
 
Senator Hogan: Perhaps. that is the whole issue of screening, selection, training and 
supervision. With all of that you then have a pretty established system.     
 
Senator Dever: I am curious $550,000 is that for creating a program to provide the training 
and then this only one-time funding? I think the idea is we will establish this program. It will 
become the base for the development of the peer support structure, education first.  I don’t 
think this is one- time funding.  
 
Pam Sagness, Director of Behavioral Health Program, DHS:  
Testified in favor of S2032, and provided Attachment # 2 Peer Support Services, explaining 
what Peer Support is professionalized in the State of North Dakota, creating minimum 
standards and I think to answer Senator Matherns’ question, really focusing on what are 
the requirements? A big part of that is supervision, and support. It is vital to individuals who 
have experienced whether it’s mental illness or addiction or is a family member who had a 
family member experience that; that they have support and with supervision available. 
That’s why we are looking at this certification. It is important that we create a that 
infrastructure in our state. We also need to insure that there is a minimum standard for 
billing purposes. As peer support services are utilized for example for the Free through 
Recovery program all of the peers that are providing peer support services in that program 
have completed a week long training and then they are working for the care coordination 
agencies and working with their supervision. Those are some of the things we need to  
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shore up and the certification that we are asking for is not a model. It is a minimum standard. 
What that means is Mental Health America already has a curriculum and a training and the 
Connecticut SeeCar model which is used in addiction-we have people in the state already 
trained in that. We have the training we’ve been doing with Free through Recovery, which 
brings in a correctional component and a criminal justice piece because that’s whose is being 
served by the Free through Recovery program. We are not picking one model and paying for 
the training of that one model, this is to create a certification no different than what you’ve 
see for example when we license addiction counselors. There is a minimum standard, they 
have this training, they have this on-going continuing education, they have supervision. So 
we would be establishing administrative rules that would guide this process and then we 
need to have a staff person in order to maintain these certifications and all of the trainings 
that go along with that. I do want to be clear too, that there is no intention of mandating people 
to become certified. They don’t need to be certified unless they are planning to be reimbursed 
and that’s required by the payer. If not, it would eliminate AA and some mentoring programs 
and all of those things. It’s instead really reaching into our rural area, with some support that 
we know that we can provide in that rural community. I just wanted to note I have in my 
handout, we trained just under 200 individuals since February with the Free through 
Recovery program, both mental health and substance abuse and of that group 81% are 
located in the rural areas. Peers can be a vital connection in a small community. We have 3 
churches. Those churches are really the vital piece of supporting one another in our 
community. Our churches through the Lutheran Social Services are training peers. So that 
those peers can be a connector to the clinical services when those things are needed. But 
it’s really that outreach that you’re not going to have a psychologist or psychiatrist or Master’s 
level clinician floating in every small town in the state. But we have people who have 
experience this. I wanted to share that information. 

 
Senator Mathern: What is the rational for doing this in your department versus at a 
university or a community college or let somebody else actually do the training and some 
sort of certification process. I am just a little bit concerned that going forward it’s another 
load in the Human Service budget. Like we won’t have you do all the nurse training in ND, 
that is sort of in somebody else’s budget. So can you comment on that as a proper location 
of this. 

 
Pam Sagness:  This has been a very large discussion. We have talked with other states 
through an effort called Brass Tacts which was bringing recovery support services to scale. 
We were selected and funded through SAMSA, at the national level to learn. One of the 
first things I want to say, is that there was a very clear place where many states have gone 
before us, more than 40 states have peer support covered in their Medicaid programs for 
example. The first thing that I think we learned from that was to not have this certification at 
any boards that already exist. I want to note that. Because then you have the professional 
clinicians supervising peer support instead of peer support specialists supervising and 
guiding peer support. So first and foremost that was the first decision we needed to make. 
The second one is, we actually contracted with the Senate for Rule House at UND to 
develop the peer support certification plan. So we have no resistance to working with other 
entities. However, there is a cost to building the infrastructure versus consultation too. I 
think we’re open to options if that includes the funding to have it done in an outside source 
versus an FTE. There still has to be someone within the department though for that person 
to call. You heard testimony earlier from Rebecca Quinn that there is times that we don’t 
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have the internal resource to even keep up with all the contracts once we contract 
everything out.   

 
Senator Bekkedahl:    On your handout you say that you hosted seven peer support 
specialist trainings in 2018, training 189 individuals. Where were those at? Were they at 
Human Service Centers or where do you do that and in what cities? 

 
Pam Sagness: They were spread throughout the state and they weren’t hosted in the 
Human Service Centers. So we had some in Minot, GF, Bismarck and Fargo. I think they 
were the four key locations and then depending where individuals lived they attended 
whichever was closest or sometimes they attended one further away because they had an 
immediacy. They had a job perhaps with the Free through Recovery program and they 
needed to complete the training in order to begin the work. 

 
Matthew McCleary, Youth Coordinator for the ND Federation of Families for 
Children’s Mental Health:  testified in favor of SB 2032 and provided Attachment # 3, a 
letter that explains the need for peer support workers, and asking DHS to build a peer 
support program for people of all ages. 
 
(20.21) Sidney McCorvey: Testified in favor of SB 2032 and provided Attachment # 4, a 
statement that states he is proud to be a Peer Support Specialist and with his experience in 
life he feels we could save people from going to prison, the emergency room or even the 
cemetery.     
 
Pam Sagness:  If I could respond better to the question from Senator Bekkedahl.   I just 
wanted to clarify that we actually did provide train the trainers so there are trainers in theis 
state now that can go to any community to provide that training. We provided the training 
previously based on the where we had need based on the Free through Recovery program 
but we do have trainers in the state so they can go to rural communities they can go to large 
communities, and provide the training for others. Also the partnership that we have with 
Lutheran Social Services, we are doing a faith based peer support network. So they are going 
to any community with a population of 200. So we will be providing peer support through our 
faith based network with Lutheran Social Services to all of those communities. So the 
certification is just an additional opportunity for those who chose to provide peer support 
services as a career outside of that. I also just wanted to clarify that the DHS supports parent 
to parent. We fund Mental Health America to do a parent to parent program. The reason that 
we have not been focusing on peers for that 12 months is that the funding that the department 
received for the Free through Recovery program is for individuals in the criminal justice 
system. So we don’t have funding to administer outside of the Parent to Parent funding that 
we already provide to Mental Health America, to develop a Peer support network for parents.  
So we certainly support that and if it’s this bodies wish to fund some of the initiative that have 
been presented this session, we do believe that we would be able to further that opportunity 
to all ages. 
 
Senator Mathern: Why this isn’t in the governor’s budget. I notice someone is here from the 
governor’s office. Do they support this bill in passage? 
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Pam Sagness: Peer support certification is in the Governor’s budget. It is funded at half of 
what was proposed in the interim budget because we will need a year to write Administrative 
Rules. So that is why there is a difference between the interim bill and the executive budget, 
Both based off the HSR recommendations.  
 
(23.49)   Senator Mathern:  Are you saying that everything in this bill is in the Governor’s 
budget already? 
 
Pam Sagness: It is in the executive budget request.  
 
Senator Mathern: It is in your request or the Governor’s request to us. Is it in 2012 already?    
 
Pam Sagness: I don’t know that I can say it is in 2012 because it’s in the Governor’s 
Executive budget request which was proposed by the department as an optional adjustment 
request to the governor. Now how that works with the sheets, and I look at you to see how 
that works.    
 
Becky J. Keller, OMB 2012 is based on the base appropriation from last session. So if it 
was included in the base last session then yes it’s in 2012.  If it is a new optional request that 
they submitted to the Governor, for his recommendation, then no it’s probably not in 2012.    
 
Senator Mathern: Is it in the green sheets?  
Becky J.Keller, OMB yes it is in the green sheets. 
Senator Mathern: This dollar amount is in there? 
Becky J. Keller: I am not familiar with the green sheets; I would have to ask Brady about 
that. 
 
Brady Larson, Legislative Council: In the Executive Budget request there was $275,000 
from the General Fund and one FTE position for peer support certification.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: My youngest sister has Down Syndrome. I remember years ago 
going to visit with parents who was sort of peer to peer situation.   
 
Pam Sagness:  (25:44) You asked earlier about paring really having a peer that someone 
you can identify with, it is vital. One thing in the Free through Recovery program I think that 
people don’t always think about is that might also be a criminal background. It might be 
someone’s experience with the criminal justice system. It might mean that they have 
commited a sexual offense and it might mean that they have a family member that has an 
issue, so it is so broad of a topic and it is just important to know that we do the best that we 
can to identify peers that will benefit one another and have similar experiences. One request 
that we had is a request from peer support specific to farmers. To people who have similar 
life experiences. It is important to think about all aspects in that way.   
 
Senator Dever: It appears to me that the difference between the Governor’s 
recommendation of $275,000 in General Fund dollars is that this bill also includes another 
$275,000 of federal money. I assume these are funded through Medicaid dollars? And are 
they accessible for the full amount? 
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Pam Sagness: I can’t speak to how they have the $275,000 federal. Peer support once in 
the Medicaid program would qualify for the federal match. But in order to establish the 
certification I don’t believe that there is a federal match that would be available unless we 
Are able to secure some federal funding through a different federal grant. To do that but the 
Medicaid if Peer support is added to the Medicaid or amended to the state plan, then there 
would be that 50-50 or federal match whatever it is at that time.   
 
Senator Dever: So we need to resolve that before we resolve the budget in this bill.   
 
Pam Sagness:   Correct. There will have to be administrative rules that guide the actual 
program and so that’s why we had reduced the request to $275,000 because we do believe 
that we’ll need that time first before anything to be implemented and the certification. 
 
Tim Wicks, Veteran: Testified in favor of SB 2032 as a veteran regarding PTDS depression 
disorder and TBI. My basis for this is the opportunity to expand this Free to Recovery to the 
veteran population. As you all probably know we lose 20-22 veterans to suicide, and that’s 
been going on since at least 2013. That’s 8,000, that’s roughly the population in every city 
from Mandan to Hazen. The ability for peer support within the veteran community, the VA 
has started and have 2 at the hospital here, and through most of the hospitals nationwide 
they have peer support specialists for veterans. But two guys to cover the state of ND is not 
enough to handle all the veterans.  (29.41)  
 
Richard Pallay III, Fargo, ND submitted Attachment # 5, which is an email letter stating he 
is proud to be a trained Peer Support Specialist and is asking for support for SB 2032.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: This bill will go with subcommittee of 2012; Senator Dever, Chair, 
Senator Erbele and Senator Mathern.  The hearing was closed on SB 2032.    
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☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alice Delzer and Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A Subcommittee hearing regarding peer support specialist (Do Not Pass.) 
. 

 
Minutes:                                                 

Attachments: 0 

 
Senator Dever: opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2032 at 4:15 pm on 02-14-19 

in the Harvest Room.  Let the record show that all subcommittee members were present: 
Senator Dever, Chair., Senator Erbele and Senator Mathern.  Brady Larson, Legislative 
Council and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also present.  This hearing was held during 
the subcommittee meeting on SB 2012.  
 
Senator Mathern: In terms of moving this through the legislative assembly in 2019, what is 
your view in terms of what would be most helpful to your policy development and 
implementation. Would you want 2032 to stand on its own or would you want it in 2012 where 
we are funding services? 
 
Pam Sagness, Director Behavioral Health (DHS):  We would support 2032 being moved 
into 2012 as the appropriation is around the certification which was to do with all the billing 
and further services. That might be the 1915(i), the Medicaid reimbursement, or even the 
free-through recovery.  
 
Senator Mathern: I would move to place a do not pass and then moving its content to 
SB 2012 at our next discussion.    
 
Senator Dever: Are we including the policy in the budget? That is section one of the bill. 
Does it work to add that language in the budget? (answer- yes) Alternatively we would 
remove the appropriation and send the policy back.  
 
Pam Sagness: This bill was specifically in the executive budget already also in the policy 
bill.     
 
Senator Dever: Is that why the numbers are different than in the bill? That was confirmed.  
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Senator Dever: So the numbers in the bill are an increase over the executive budget?  
 
Pam Sagness: The numbers in the bill were established in the interim. Those were 
established in September prior to the Governor’s budget which was released in December. 
The number that was done in the interim, wasn’t necessarily run through a fiscal and 
identified looking at the salary, FTE, and what is needed for the program.   
 
Senator Dever: So the full amount is justified? 
 
Pam Sagness: The full amount that is in the executive budget request is justified.    
 
Senator Dever: We do have a motion to defeat SB 2032. The motion also included moving 
the policy language to the budget in 2012.  
 
Senator Erbele: seconded.   
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken. 3 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  Motion Carried.  
 
(4:20) The meeting on SB 2032 was adjourned.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for DHS re: to peer support specialist certification (Do Not Pass.)  
 

Minutes:                                                 No Testimony submitted  

 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the Committee to order on SB 2026. All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were also 
present. 
Chairman Holmberg: We’re following the model we did two years ago, when we had that 
duplicative series of bills, they were all Appropriation bills and the rules do not allow for that, 
but the rules are suspendable.  So last time, what happened is we brought 25 bills up to the 
floor, the motion was Senator Klein moved to suspend Joint Rule 206 through the 17 th 
legislative day, which motion prevailed, and then the second reading of Senate bills on the 
consent calendar for all 24 votes went as one vote and we were done.  My understanding 
according to talking to John Bjornson this morning is we can in committee have a motion that 
we would list the bills that we are putting on the consent calendar for a Do Not Pass and then 
we would vote on that, one vote, and then they would go up on the consent calendar.  If you 
recall, we also have two bills in there that had been signed and they had to do with the 
Attorney General’s budget that the items were folded into the budget.  So, before we do it we 
need to have someone from the committee move that we do a Do Not Pass and place these 
bills on the consent calendar, as these bills are now duplicative to SB 2012. 
The list is as follows:  
 
SB 2026 - Do Not Pass – Improving Mental Health Services  
SB 2028 - Do Not Pass -  Behavioral Health Prevention & Early Intervention Services 
SB 2029 - Do Not Pass – Implementation of Community Behavioral Health Program 
SB 2030 - Do Not Pass -  Relating to State’s Behavioral Health System  
SB 2031 - Do Not Pass -  Targeted Case Management Services   
SB 2032 - Do Not Pass -  Peer Support Specialist Certification  
SB 2168 - Do Not Pass -  Adjustments to QSP Rates  
SB 2175 - Do Not Pass -  Substance Use Disorder Treatment Voucher System 
SB 2298 - Do Not Pass -  1915(i) Medicaid State Plan Amendment for Children    
SB 2242 - Do Not Pass – Grants to children’s advocacy centers.      
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Chairman Holmberg: Committee members you may think when the budget comes it is rich, 
but the bottom line is they are putting the entire issues regarding these bills on the same 
table. If someone would make the following motion that the Appropriations Committee put a 
Do Not Pass and place on the consent calendar.  
 
 V. Chairman Wanzek: Moved a Do Not Pass and place on the consent calendar on the 
afore-mentioned bills.  2nd by V. Chairman Krebsbach.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on a Do Not Pass and place them on the consent calendar 
on the afore-mentioned bills.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 14:   Nay: 0; Absent: 0.           
 
Chairman Holmberg:  I did talk to John in Legislative Council and if the front desk has a 
problem have them call up to Legislative Council and they will say it is fine.  I Will carry the 
consent calendar.    
 
Senator Dever: This will be on Monday but SB 2012 will be on Tuesday.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: The only other thing with this is, keep in mind that any senator has 
the right to pull a bill off the consent calendar and have a debate on this.  the two from the 
Attorney General are already on the consent calendar.  This will just join them. I believe there 
are two more bills that you passed, SB 2106 and SB 2191, Let’s hear about them. (These 
bills were assigned to new jobs.)   
 
 The hearing was closed.    
 
 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. �{J j 1-.., 

Senate Appropriations 

� Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: .@z([/)-L-.£,Av � t'cJ� ,i;,;/o 5 t3 ;JO I ,!L 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass *°o Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By _ _,//Z,__+l�...,,.d-J ..... _,-<:::e,.,...JJL).......,1/U._ ___ Seconded By 

Senators 
Senator Holmberg 
Senator Krebsbach 
Senator Wanzek 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Poelman 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Dever 
Senator SorvaaQ 
Senator Oehlke 
Senator HoQue 

Yes No 

/ 

/ 

._3' No 

Senators 
Senator Mathern 
Senator Grabinger 
Senator Robinson 

Yes No 
,v 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----------- ---------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: � - / S - d O 11 
Roll C all Vote#: / 

2019 SENATE ST ANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. d-0 3 .1_ 

Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ?WJ k 1 JO J..f1 Jo :J., 1 J Jo3 0,, J. 0 3 { 
1 

�O 3 el 
;)_J '-i 

I 
J..J 7 5 _, (/\J-.18 J_Ji l/-J. Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment ' 

D Do Pass j(Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Jitf>lace on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Ld.,.1J"'j_, 
Senators 

Senator Holmberq 
Senator Krebsbach 
Senator Wanzek 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Poelman 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Dever 
Senator Sorvaaq 
Senator Oehlke 
Senator Hoque 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes 
y" 
� 
� 

� 
r" 
v 
� 

,� 

� 
� 
/ 

I</ 

Seconded By 

No Senators 
Senator Mathern 
Senator Grabinger 
Senator Robinson 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes _No v-
� 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2019 9:29 AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_009 
Carrier: Holmberg 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2032: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT 

PASS and BE PLACED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2032 was placed on the Tenth order on the 
calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_30_009 



2019 TESTIMONY 

SB 2032 



TESTIMONY 
Senate Human Services Committee 

SB 2032 

January 8, 2019 

Senator Kathy Hogan 

5Js �03� 

\/C{/}4 
�I �.I 

Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Service Committee, my name is Kathy 

Hogan, and I represent District 21 the heart of Fargo. 

SB 2032 is the third of the interim human services behavioral health bills. This bill is 

related to peer support. Yesterday we heard powerful stories about the need for and 

benefits of peer support. This bill was designed to establish an evidence-based process 

for training peer supports that could be used across the entire behavioral health continuum. 

Peer Support training is an essential piece to building a peer network. It is, however, 

only one piece. Other states have demonstrated that a solid peer support structure ideally 

provides a system of care that includes recruitment and screening of peers, a supervision 

structure for peers, a peer payment system with clear outcome and performance standards. 

There are many models for peer support services from volunteer, to church sponsored 

groups, to networks such as AA. All of them can should be part of the continuum of 

services. This bill would add the critical training component of the system. 

Thank you, Madam Chair, I would be more than willing to answer any questions. 

HSRI Goals: lJ,4,9,10,11,12,13 
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Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am 

Pamela Sagness, Director of the Behavioral Health Division of the Department of 

Human Services. I appear today to provide testimony on Senate Bill 2032. 

Senate Bill 2032 authorizes the Behavioral Health Division within the Department of 

Human Services to develop and implement a program for the certification of peer 

support specialists. This bill also includes an appropriation of $275,000 and one full

time equivalent position to develop and administer this new service. 

A peer support specialist is a person who uses his or her lived experience of 

recovery from mental illness or addiction, or both, plus skills learned in formal 

training, to deliver services in behavioral health settings to promote recovery and 

resiliency. Peer support has existed in the behavioral health field for decades; 

however, its rapid growth in recent years in due to the increasing evidence 

supporting its effectiveness. 

Given the growing evidence base for the effectiveness of peer support services-both 

in terms of quality of life, outcomes for individuals and in terms of cost savings to 

counties and states due to reductions in rates of hospitalization-these efforts have 

the potential to make significant improvements to the behavioral health system. 

A variety of programs and efforts have been made in the previous years to increase 

access to this service. The Behavioral Health Division has hosted seven peer 

support specialist trainings in 2018 and trained 193 individuals. Peer support 

services are currently being provided and reimbursed through the Free Through 

Recovery and Substance Use Disorder Voucher programs. The Behavioral Health 
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Division is also in the contracting process with Lutheran Social Services to develop 

and support a statewide rural, faith-based peer support network. Lastly, a Request 

for proposals is being posted to integrate peer support specialist services into high 

risk access points for individuals with a behavioral health disorder. 

To be most effective and sustainable, peer support services must be delivered 

according to national practice standards in a manner that maintains the integrity of 

peer support. Senate Bill 2032 provides the necessary authority to professionalize 

peer support as part of the state's behavioral health workforce and to build 

foundation in an effort to seek reimbursement for this service. 

Peer Support Certification has potential to address Human Services Research 

Institute Behavioral Health System Study recommendations #3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 

13. 

This concludes my testimony, and I am happy to answer any questions. 

2 
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Chairman Lee and members of the committee, my name is Carlotta McCleary. I am the 

Executive Director for both Mental Health America of North Dakota and North Dakota 

Federation of Families for Children's Mental Health. Today I speak on behalf of the Mental 

Health Advocacy Network (MHAN). MHAN advocates for a consumer/family driven mental 

health system of care that provides an array of service choices that are timely, responsive and 

effective. 

MHAN has provided testimony since the 2015 session and the most recent interim human 

service and health service committee meetings regarding our priorities. We argue that peer to 

peer and family support, consumer choice, diversion from corrections, a core services zero-

reject model, and conflict free grievance and appeals processes, and the access to a full and 

functional continuum of care serve as the backbone to correcting the crisis in North Dakota's 

behavioral health system. 

MHAN is testifying in support of SB 2032. MHAN's number one priority is funding for peer to 

peer and parent to parent support. Peer support is an evidence-based practice. The Schulte Report 

of 2014 made clear, "The use of peers, family support peers, recovery coaches, and other persons 

with lived experience is an evidence-based practice and a growing national trend with good 

treatment outcomes. In rural areas with behavioral health professional shortages, like North 

Dakota, using peers and other interested persons like teachers, law enforcement personnel, 

emergency workers, etc. are instrumental to expanding the workforce. 
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In addition, increasing the number of out-stationed workers in the community is key to 

improving access to services." The Human Services Research Institute report also 

recommends the expansion of peer support services. In recommendation 7.8 the state is 

recommended to "Support a robust peer workforce through training, professional 

development, and competitive wages." 

To adequately address the lack of peer support services, North Dakota would need to 

look at making peer support a reimbursable service through Medicaid and private 

insurance. For North Dakota to have a reimbursable peer support service sector, North 

Dakota would need to have a peer support workforce that is professionally trained and 

certified. Since the last legislative session, North Dakota has developed a peer support 

training and has trained over 100 persons who could eventually provide behavioral health 

peer support services. SB 2032 is the necessary second step in getting North Dakota peer 

support services off the ground. 

I would be happy to take any questions you have. 

Carlotta McCleary, Spokesman 
Mental Health Advocacy Network (MHAN) 
523 North 4th Street 
Bismarck ND 58501 

Email: cmccleary@mhand.org 

Phone: (701)255-3692 
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Chairwoman Judy Lee and members of the Committee, my name is Trina Gress, I am a Vice 

President of Community Options. I stand here before you to advocate in support of SB 2032. 
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Community Options is a Free Through Recovery (FTR) provider. We serve 110 individuals each 

month. As a provider, we provide "care coordination" services to those individuals each month. 

Care coordination services are defined as connecting individuals with housing supports, helping 

individuals gain employment, ensuring individuals are connected to recovery supports, and 

connecting individuals with meaningful activities to reduce criminal involvement. 

As a provider, we have considered employing and training one staff to be a peer support 

specialist to ensure the recover supports are met, however, we have decided not to do this for 

two reasons. First, if we had only one peer support specialists but over 100 individuals the 

demand would be far too great for the workforce. Secondly, having a limited option for choice of 

peer support is not person-centered services. Creating a certification for peer support and 

providing funding for reimbursement for peer support would professionalize this service while 

creating a workforce for provider like Community Options. 

Currently in the FTR program, we do not provide peer supports within our agency, however we 

do offer recovery supports of the individual's choice. Some examples of recovery supports 

include AA sponsor, a leader in their choice of faith, or peer support by a friend/another agency. 

For example, since Community Options does not employ a peer support specialist, we trade 

services with other agencies (Face it Together, Redemption Road) that do. However, if peer 

support was a certified service, with regulations and reimbursement, it would create an industry 

with a workforce to compliment providers who provide care coordination but do not employ a 

peer support specialist. 

In conclusion, Community Options suggests that you consider supporting this SB 2032. 

Thank you for your time, are there any questions? 

Sincerely Submitted, 

Trina Gress 
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SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SB2032 
"Peer Support Specialist Certification" 

Chairman Lee and Committee Members. My name is Jessica Thomasson, and I serve 

as CEO for Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota. On behalf of Lutheran Social Services, I 

am testifying today in support of SB2032. 

Creating a path to certification for peer support specialists in North Dakota is a necessary 

first step in the professionalization of this type of work and the broader availability of resources 

that will almost certainly follow. 

While we often think of peer support as something people do "out of the goodness of 

their hearts" because they want to help others, our experience tells us that this work is critically 

important to a person achieving wellbeing and better health. To ensure these services are 

available when and where we need them, it is time to find a way to go beyond a volunteer-only 

model. 

At LSS, peer support has been as an important part of our gambling addiction treatment 

program. People in recovery coming back to mentor and support those who are earlier in their 

journey. While we may not always think of it as peer support, our senior companion program -

which matches older adults with other older adults who are struggling with isolation and 

loneliness - is a decades-long example of the power of peers working to support each other. 

Youth Court matches teens with other teens in a nationally recognized model of juvenile justice 

diversion. Most recently, Free Through Recovery has proven yet again that peer support is an 

effective way to help people find a path to wellbeing. 

Page 1 of2 
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Currently, almost all peer support services need to be funded with grants or other private 

dollars because these services are not generally eligible for reimbursement in our state. This has 

certainly been our experience. In every situation noted above, we have relied on grants and/or 

volunteer peers to be able to offer the services. I want to recognize that the SUD Voucher 

program, in its role as a gap filler, has offered one of the first opportunities for peer support 

services to be reimbursed in North Dakota. 

If we know that peer support services are important to a person's chances of success, and 

ifwe therefore want to make sure the services are available when and where people need them, 

we have to find a way to build a structure that allows us to provide the services with regularity. 

Establishing training and qualifications based on best practices is an important piece of the 

puzzle, not only for the contribution to overall quality, but also because it will open the door to 

ways to pay for the service. 

Professionalizing lived experience in the same way that we have professionalized learned 

experience represents an evolution in our understanding of how to be effective -- an evolution in 

our understanding of what works. It is a tacit recognition that we know there is more than one 

way of knowing, and of coming to knowledge. Just like there are many roads to recovery, there 

many ways to help someone find their way there. 

Our hope is that over time, Medicaid, Medicare, Home and Community Based Service 

programs, and private insurance will all become viable resources to allow for the provision of 

peer support services, in a variety of client contexts. 

We would encourage your support of SB2032. Thank you for the opportunity to speak to 

you today. I would be happy to answer any questions you have for me. 

Jessica Thomasson, CEO, Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota 
Email: ithomasson@lssnd.org. Phone: 701-271-3272 

Page 2 of2 
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Thank  you for l i sten i ng to my testimony th is week on menta l hea lth and peer support i n  
support of  b i l l s  S B  2029 and SB 2032. My name is Emma Qu inn  and I l ive with B ipolar 
2. My journey with mental health started at age 1 2  for me,  but it wasn't  unt i l  I lost my 
brother  at age 1 9  that I rea l ized the importance of tak ing care of my mental hea lth . 
Watch ing my parents bury their 2 1  year old son is the reason I speak up ,  it is my goal to 
save as many fam i l ies from that pain as poss ib le .  

Al l  my l ife I have strugg led with depress ion , anxiety, su icida l  thoughts and self harm . I 
knew reach ing out for help was essentia l  to dea l ing with my i l l ness but due to extreme 
fi nancia l  costs I was rarely able to do so. I t  wasn 't unti l the Med icaid expansion that I 
was ab le to get the help I tru ly needed and deserved . It was because of that in it ial help 
by the government that I was able to go on to fin ish col lege ,  get my d ream job , bu i ld a 
fam i ly ,  start a bus iness, and most importantly afford private health insurance .  

U n l i ke add ict ion mental hea lth is an extremely lonely world . On ly i n  i ntens ive treatment 
and waiting rooms a re you connected to others that l ive i n  you r  world . I never fe lt more 
understood and accepted as I d id when I was i n  treatment. I was ab le to see other faces 
that strugg led with the same th ings I d id . I was able to have open and honest 
conversat ions on top ics that make most people tu rn away. Once I was wel l  enough to 
leave treatment I lost contact with a l l  my peers ;  I never had those honest conversations 
again .  This is  why peer support is so important to the mental health system , no one 
shou ld fee l  a lone in th is world . 

To say there are huge gaps in  the menta l health system is an understatement. Knowing 
the importance of mental health I have made it my top priority to get the care I need . 
Sad ly it is not a system that is eas i ly navigated or understood , especia l ly if you are put 
on med ications that a re not the right fit for you .  To have a peer support or  care 
coord inator to he lp  me navigate the system and show me the resources ava i lable to me 
would have saved me many years of crying and frustration .  

I am not apart of  the  crim ina l  justice system nor  have I ever been and I do not struggle 
with add iction . I became aware of the peer support prog ram and Free Through 
Recovery just a short two months ago .  Because I have done so wel l  on my menta l 
hea lth jou rney I wanted to help others get to the p lace I was ,  everyone deserves 
happiness even if you ' re menta l ly i l l .  I s igned up for the peer support tra i n ing not 
knowing what it was .  I have become so passionate about it because I tru ly feel that it is 
one of the th ings that wi l l  he lp fi l l  the gaps i n  the menta l hea lth system . To have 
someone to he lp g u ide  me along the process and teach me how to advocate for myself 
wou ld have been an i nva luable resource early on in my recovery. 

There are often t imes I find myself wish ing for someone to understand how I fee l .  Even 
though cl i n ic ians a re tra ined i n  i l l ness they do not understand my da i ly strugg les . Free 
Through Recovery has had amazing resu lts across the state , I have tra ined with and 
tra i ned many of it's partic ipants . They often speak of how it was thei r  care coord inator 
and the i r  peer support that never gave up  on them that made the d ifference in  their 
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recovery.  Thank  you for passing the Free Through Recovery progra m ,  because of you 
chi ldren across the state have the i r  parents back and recovery is now a way of l iv ing . 

Many states have a l ready imp lemented these programs and North Dakota has the 
un ique ab i l ity to learn from the i r  successes and strugg les . By creat ing a certificat ion 
process and having a standard of care we elevate the level of care our commun ity 
receives . Menta l hea lth is j ust as important as phys ica l  hea lth and it shou ld be b i l led to 
insurance equa l ly. By creat ing these programs we are a l lowing our  state to receive 
much needed services at an affordab le price. We are able to p lace ind iv id ua ls with l ived 
experiences in p laces where cris is '  show up most frequently ie .  Emergency Rooms,  the 
foster care system , and homeless shelters . By expand ing these services and making 
them b i l lab le enables us as a state to put them where we see the need . 

I ask for your  support on b i l ls SB  2029 and SB 2032 so that a l l  North Dakotans can get 
the help that they need . 

Thank you ,  

Emma Qu inn  
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My name is  Ryan Hensley and I am a Care Coord inator and Peer Support Specia l i st at North Dakota 
Adu l t  and Teen Cha l lenge i n  Mandan , ND  work ing with the Free Through  Recovery prog ram .  I 
wou ld  l i ke to thank you for your  support i n  pass ing the b i l l  i n  the last leg is lative sessio n .  

Through t h e  peer support specia l i st program a n d  being i n  recovery myself th is  wi l l  b e  a very 
va l uable  too l  i n  he lp i ng  people to overcome the i r  add ictions .  It a l l ows us as peer support specia l i sts 
to use o u r  l i fe exper iences to he lp them cope with tem ptations that they wi l l  face i n  rea l  l ife . I wou ld 
a lso l i ke to thank you and  the state of  ND for you r  support i n  provid ing  the peer support specia l ist 
tra i n i ng and n ow there a re over 200 i n  the state of N D .  Also th rough th i s  prog ram the fam i l ies of a l l  
t he  peers we wi l l  support wi l l  have a sense of  peace knowing they have a p lace to  tu rn to  when they 
face tem ptations .  

I have strugg led with add ict ion for 24 years of  my l ife and the one th i ng  I was m iss ing was a network 
of peers to be there i n  my t imes of strugg les .  AA doesn't work for everyone and havi ng someone 
outs ide of that network wou ld  have he lped . Through these program hea lth care costs wi l l  be reduced 
as there wi l l  be less i ncarceration and people in need of treatment .  I t  a l so wi l l  he lp  fu rther to 
strengthen the work force in ND and hel p us in recovery .  

I am ask i ng  for you r  support on these b i l l s  and he lp  me to  make N D  an even g reater state i n  ou r  
un ion . 

Aga i n  I want  to thank you for you r  support on th is  acti on .  

God  Bless 

Rya n Hens ley 

Free Th rough Recovery 

Care Coo rd i n ato r/Peer  Su pport Spec ia l ist 

N DATC 
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Chairman Holmberg arlmembers of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name is 

Kathy Hogan, and I represent District 2 1  the heart of Fargo. 

SB 2032 is the third of the Interim Human Services Committee behavioral health bills. 

This bill is designed to establish an evidence-based process for training peer supports that 

could be used across the entire behavioral health continuum. 

Peer Support training is an essential piece to building a peer network . It is, however, 

only one piece. Other states have demonstrated that a solid peer support structure ideally 

provides a system of care that includes recruitment and screening of peers, a supervision 

structure for peers, a peer payment system with clear outcome and performance standards. 

There are many models for peer support services from volunteer, to church sponsored 

groups, to networks such as AA. All of them can should be part of the continuum of 

services. This bil l  would add the critical training component of the system. 

Thank you, I would be more than willing to answer any questions . 

HSRI Goals: 3,4,9,10,11,12,13 
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Peer s u p port has  existed i n  the behav iora l hea lth 
fi e ld  for decades; h owever, its ra p id  growth i n  
rece nt yea rs i n  d u e  to the i nc reas ing evi dence 
su pport ing i ts effectiveness .  A Peer  Support 
Spec i a l i st i s  a person who uses h i s  or  her  l ived 
exper ience of recovery from menta l  i l l ness a nd/or 
add i ct ion ,  p lus sk i l l s  l ea rned in forma l  tra i n i ng, to 
de l ive r services i n  behav iora l hea l th  setti ngs to 
promote m i n d-body recovery a n d  res i l i ency. 

The grow ing evidence base for the effectiveness of 
peer s u pport serv i ces-both in terms of q u a l ity of l ife, 
o utcomes for i nd iv id ua l s  and  in terms of cost 
savi ngs to cou nties a n d  states due to red u ct ions  i n  
rates o f  hosp ita l izat ion-these efforts have the 
potenti a l  to make s ign ifi cant  improvements to the 
system .  

Peer Support Certificat ion h a s  potentia l t o  add ress H uman  Services 
Research I nstitute Behavioral Hea lth System Study 
recommendat ions #3, 4, 9 ,  1 0, 1 1 ,  1 2  a nd  1 3 . 

N O RTH DAKOTA EFFORTS 
I n  ea rly 20 1 8, North Da kota was se l ected to pa rt i c i pate i n  
the SAM HSA program, 'B r i ng ing Recovery Su ppo rts t o  Sca l e  
Techn i ca l  Ass i sta nce Center Strategy' ( BRSS TACS) to 
adva nce effective recovery supports a nd  serv i ces fo r 
peop le  w i th behav iora l  hea lth d i sorders and the i r  fam i l i es .  
One  of the goa l s  deve loped by th i s  team from No rth 
Da kota was to deve lop  peer su pport services in the h ighest 
r i s k/p ivota l po i nts (p r i sons, emergency depa rtments, 
commun i ty outrea ch ,  p ub l i c  hea lth ,  etc . )  i n  the system .  

The D ivi s i o n  has :  

0 Hosted seven Pee r  Support Spec ia l i st t ra i n i ngs 
in 20 1 8  a nd  tra i ned 1 89 individuals .  

0 Re im b u rses th rough the Free Th rough Recovery 
a nd  Su bsta nce Use D i sorder Voucher p rograms .  

O I s  d eve l op i ng and  support a statewide ru ra l , 
fa i th-based peer support netwo rk through 
co l l a borat ion with Luthera n  Soc ia l  Serv i ces .  

O I s  post i ng a n  RFP  to i ntegrate peer support 
spec i a l i st serv i ces i nto h igh r i sk/p ivota l po i nts 
fo r i n d iv i dua l s  with a behavi o ra l  health d i sorder .  
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P E ER  SU PPO RT 
S ERVI CES  

North Dakota 201 8 Tra i ned Peer 
Support Specia l i st by Cou ntry 

D o  1 -2 3 -5  · 6- 1 0 . 1 1 -2 5  • 

8 1 %  of trained peer support specialists 
are located in a rural community. 
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Testimony SB 2032 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Senator Ray Holmberg, Chairman 

January 28, 2019 

Chairman Holmberg and members of the committee, my name is Matthew McCleary. I am the 

Youth Coordinator for the North Dakota Federation of Families for Children's Mental Health 

and the peer support Project Director for Mental Health America of North Dakota. Today I 

speak on behalf of the Mental Health Advocacy Network (MHAN). MHAN advocates for a 

consumer/family driven mental health system of care that provides an array of service choices 

that are timely, responsive and effective. 

MHAN has provided testimony since the 2015 session and the most recent interim human 

service and health service committee meetings regarding our priorities. We argue that peer to 

peer and family support, consumer choice, diversion from corrections, a core services zero-

rej ect model, and conflict free grievance and appeals processes, and the access to a full and 

functional continuum of care serve as the backbone to correcting the crisis in North Dakota's 

behavioral health system. 

MHAN's number one priority is funding for peer to peer and parent to parent support. Peer 

support is an evidence-based practice. The Schulte Report of 2014 made clear, "The use of 

peers, family support peers, recovery coaches, and other persons with lived experience is an 

evidence-based practice and a growing national trend with good treatment outcomes. In rural 

areas with behavioral health professional shortages, like North Dakota, using peers and other 

interested persons like teachers, law enforcement personnel, emergency workers, etc. are 

instrumental to expanding the workforce. In addition, increasing the number of out-stationed 

workers in the community is key to improving access to services." The Human Services 

/J I  

p l  



Research Institute report also recommends the expansion of peer support services. In 

recommendation 7.8 the state is recommended to "Support a robust peer workforce 

through training, professional development, and competitive wages." 

To adequately address the lack of peer support services, North Dakota would need to 

look at making peer support a reimbursable service through Medicaid and private 

insurance. For North Dakota to have a reimbursable peer support service sector, North 

Dakota would need to have a peer support workforce that is professionally trained and 

certified. SB 2032 is the necessary second step in getting North Dakota peer support 

services off the ground. Since the last legislative session, North Dakota has developed a 

peer support training and has trained over 100 persons who could eventually provide 

behavioral health peer support services. This past December, I took part in the peer 

support trainings and met many people who are passionate about pursuing peer support 

for a career. What they seek is to be treated like any other professional--eaming livable 

wages and benefits, and not expected to provide their expertise for free. Some of those 

individuals have testified before this body in the past couple of weeks. 

Unfortunately, thus far the Department of Human Services has focused its attention on 

developing peer support for adults, but not for children. Parents also provide peer support 

services to other parents who have children with behavioral health disorders. I urge this 

committee to support peer support specialists by passing SB 2032 and simultaneously 

urge the Department of Human Services to move forward on building a peer support 

workforce that is inclusive of people of all ages who have behavioral health challenges. 

I would be happy to take any questions you have. 



Matthew McCleary 
Mental Health Advocacy Network (MHAN) 
523 North 4th Street 
Bismarck ND 58501 

Email : mmccleary@ndffcmh.com 

Phone: (701) 222-3310 
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My Name is Sidney Mccorvey and I support SB 2032, 

I have to say right away that rm just rea l iz ing that I 've been embarrassed and ashamed to 

say my name out loud in publ ic, but these days rm Peer Support Specia l i st and that gives 

me a great sense of pride and purpose . 

I ask what wou ld you do or give knowing that me or someone with my l ived and learned 

experience cou ld save your  chi ld or grandch i ld  from prison, the emergency room or the 

cemetery, 

See I know that I don't have a medical  degree but I believe I have what takes to save some 

young l ives. 

rm looking forward to doing this not just as a job, but as a fu l l-time overt ime career. 

Sidney Mccorvey 

3108 12
th 

Ave NW Apt 310 

Mandan,ND 58554 Sidneymccorvey@gmai l .com 

701 368-1821 
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Janua ry 28, 2019 

He l lo  M r. Cha i rman  Ho lmberg and Members of th is Committee, 

My name is Richa rd Pa l l ay, I l l  from Fa rgo, ND and as I begin, I want to express my appreciat ion 

to you a l l  for a l lowing me to share my test imony. 

I struggled with a gamb l ing add iction for over 10 yea rs, and I thought a l l  of those yea rs of t ime 

and money was lost . At the t ime, I cou ld bare ly hel p myse lf, so I d id  not see how I wou l d  ever 

be of any he lp to my peers .  S ince be ing in  recovery, I learned identify ing with a n  add ict ion or  

menta l i l l ness is where the a id  of  a peer  support specia l ist can be so vita l .  Not on ly has th i s  

tra i n ing provided me with practica l and  infl uentia l ski l ls to he lp  my fe l l ow peers, but i t  has a lso 

been a p ivota l part of my own recovery jou rney. 

I am proud to sta nd before you as one of over 100 tra ined Peer Support Spec ia l ists here in 

North Dakota, and I am excited the possib i l ity b i l l  SB 2032 can provide .  Recovery I nnovations, a 

l a rge provider agency i n  Phoen ix, AZ, wrote a statement that he lps put the benefit another 

way. The i r  statement says "When consumers begin to work i n  the behaviora l  hea lth system as 

peer specia l i sts, recovery is accelerated in three ways. The peer specia l ist's recovery 

strengthened, the peer specia l i st he lps others recover, and peer speci a l ists he l p  the agency 

and/or the system recover." 

I make better choices because I stay in  recovery, and as  a peer support speci a l i st, I ca n help my 

peers do the same. I was bound to my add ict ion, and I wish I wou l d  have met a peer support 

specia l ist at severa l po ints in  my l ife to he lp  me see I d idn 't have to suffer. To see I d idn't have 

to l ive in  a world with shattered hopes and  d reams .  To see a successfu l recovery is poss ib le, and  

a peer support speci a l ist wou ld  be  there any  t ime  I need a n  extra he lp ing han d .  

Georgia was the fi rst state to have a Med ica id b i l l ab le  peer support speci a l ist t ra i n ing program 

in  2001, and s ince that t ime, over 36 states have adopted the program accord ing to the 

Appa lach ian Consu lti ng G roup .  They a l so est imate that there a re a lmost 20,000 cert ified peer 

specia l ists nat iona l ly who work with agencies that b i l l  Med ica id  for the peer specia l ists' 

services. I support B i l l  SB 2032 since with Med ica id ass istance, it can create career options i n  

partnersh ip  with our  own agencies here in  North Dakota who can use the  u n ique  ab i l it ies peer 

support spec ia l ists p rovide, no matter our  job descri ption . 

Than k  you advance for your  cons iderat ion . 

Best Rega rds, 

R icha rd Pa l lay, I l l  
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